
417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 

 

   
  

 

City Council Agenda 
The City Council meeting is open to the public and will be held at City Hall. 

Meetings will be streamed via Facebook Live ( https://www.facebook.com/cityofvalleyfalls) Please email questions to cityadmin@valleyfalls.org before the meeting. 
 
August 2, 2023 6:30 PM 
Regular Meeting 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
ROLL CALL – City Council and Staff  
MINUTES – Regular Meeting of July 5, 2023  
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS & GUESTS: 
Public Comment Policy  
 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 

1. Grasshopper Falls Day Request – Sept 23rd  
2. Grasshopper Falls Alcohol Resolution #2023-05 
3. Octoberfest Request – Sept 30th  
4. Octoberfest Alcohol Resolution #2023-06 
5. Party in the Park Alcohol Resolution #2023-07 
6. 207 Sycamore Status Update 
7. 2023 Standard Traffic Ordinance # 14-119 
8. 2023 Uniform Public Offense Code Ordinance # 11-117 
9. Blue Cross Blue Shield Rates 
10. Auditor Proposals 

a. VonFeldt, Bauer, & VonFeldt - $9,500 
b. Adams Brown - $11,180  

11. Haven’s Construction Pay Request #1 - $123,588.61 
12. Haven’s Construction Pay Request #2 - $160,897.14 
13. RV Park Extended Stay Request 

a. Kevin Campbell – 1 month 
b. Kayla Page – 1 month 

14. Appointments to Community Development Committee 
a. USD 338 – John Hamon 
b. Business Owner – Jo Tichoner  
c. Member-at-large - Jayne Coleman 
d. Resident – Sloan Breight 

15. City Code Enforcement Officer 
16. Budget Presentation 

 
INVOICES for July 19th - $ 68,801.08 
INVOICES for August 2nd - $371,883.72   
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://www.facebook.com/cityofvalleyfalls
mailto:cityadmin@valleyfalls.org


417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org                                                                                                                                                                              Page 2  

REPORTS: 
CITY ADMINISTRATOR: Audree Guzman  
PUBLIC WORKS: Bill McCoy  
POLICE: Carrie Clark  
POOL: Lori Glissman 
MAYOR: Jeanette Shipley  
FIRE DISTRICT: Salih Doughramaji 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE: Audree Guzman 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: Audree Guzman 
CITY COUNCIL COMMENTS/ FEEDBACK/ IDEAS 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS/ COMMUNICATIONS: 
 August 13th - USD 338 Back to School Ice Cream Social 6pm 
 August 15th – First Day of School 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
ADJOURNMENT 



Meeting Minutes                                                                                                                       Page 1 
 

CITY OF VALLEY FALLS 
July 5, 2023 

 
Open Meeting 

 
The meeting was called to order at 6:30 pm by Mayor Jeanette Shipley.  Council members present 
were, Gary McKnight, Matt Frakes, Salih Doughramaji, Jennifer Ingraham and Judy Rider.  
 
Staff present:  Audree Guzman, City Administrator, Bill McCoy, Public Works, Police Chief Carrie Clark, 
and Leonard Buddenbohm, City Attorney. 
 
Others present:  Dianne Heinen 
 
Minutes: 
The minutes from the June 21, 2023, meeting was presented. 
Salih moved to approve the minutes.  Gary seconded the motion.  Salih requested more detail of 
discussions be included in future minutes. Motion carried 4-0. 
 
Public Comments & Guests:   
No public comment. 
 
BUSINESS ITEMS: 
1. Notice to County to Exceed Revenue Neutral Rate Resolution #2023-04 

The Resolution to Exceed Revenue Neutral Rate is to establish a public hearing on September 
6th. Jennifer made a motion to approve the resolution #2023-04. Salih second the motion. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

2. Community Development Committee – By Laws 
The Community Development Committee bylaws were presented. Letters to past members of 
the Economic Development Committee will be sent out and membership advertised on 
Facebook. Salih made a motion to approve the bylaws for the Community Development 
Committee. Gary second the motion. Motion carried 5-0. 

3. SS4A KDOT Grant Agreement 
The agreement is for the KDOT cost share program for the Safe Streets for All Grant(SS4A).  
Salih made a motion to approve the SS4A KDOT Grant Agreement. Jennifer seconded the 
motion. Motion carried 5-0. 

4. SS4A USDOT Grant Agreement 
The agreement is for the USDOT 80% Grant for the Safe Streets for All Grant (SS4A). 

5. Salih made a motion to approve the SS4A USDOT Grant Agreement. Jennifer seconded the 
motion. Motion carried 5-0. 

6. 1009 Francis -Street Light/ Blacktop Request 
The owner of 1009 Francis St requested a street light be placed on the 1000 block of Francis 
and the road be paved and storm drainage installed. For such request a Benefit District would 
be used to cover cost. Due to the house at 1009 Francis being vacant no action was taken to 
move forward with the request. However, the Public Works Department will grade the street. 

 



Meeting Minutes                                                                                                                       Page 2 
 

VOUCHERS: 
July 5, 2023, vouchers.  Salih moved to approve vouchers in the amount of $78,586.14.  Jennifer 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0. 
 
REPORTS: 
City Administrator: 

Daily Operations 
1. Codification First draft of update code is anticipated by mid-July.  
2. Budget Working on the 2024 budget. This process starts in May and is generally completed 

by September.  
3. Storm Siren Working with Blue Valley to get storm siren installed at City Park. Will be 

completed in July. 
4. Ford Truck The new truck for the public works department is anticipated to be here in mid-

July. 
5. Barnes Addition Plot PEC has completed the draft. County appraiser not responding to PEC. 

The plot will be recorded this month.  
6. Utility Mapping The update water maps have been sent to PEC. We should be fully 

functional on PEC Maps by July. 
7. 207 Sycamore St Condemnation Next update June 21st.   
8. 204 Walnut St Condemnation Next update August 23rd.   
9. 419 Broadway St Condemnation Next update August 23rd.  
10. Community Development Board – Collaborative meeting over by-laws on June 28th. Sending 

letters out for membership. 
11. Planning Commission – Met on May 30 for variance. Next meeting July 6th.   
 
Grants & Projects 
1. CDBG Sewer Project Phase 1- Construction began May 1st. Anticipated completion by 

October 2023.  
2. KDHE Waste Tire Grant – Awarded grant of $2,600 for benches and tables. Received first 

half of payment. Benches and tables have been received.  
3. SS4A Grant – Awarded grant of $40,000 Federal Funding and $5,000 KDOT. Working on 

completing RFQ for consultant. Awaiting final grant contract from USDOT.  
4. LSSE Grant Application submitted. To be used for radios and Enterpol RMS. Anticipated 

award notice in September. 
5. T-Mobile Grant Application submitted on behalf of Valley Falls Historical Society. Anticipated 

award notice in September.  
6. K-4 / K-16 Street Lights – Safety study is anticipated to be finalized with recommendations 

by June. $30,000 estimated to add lighting. If warranted by KDOT study, the light cost will be 
covered by KDOT. 

7. Opioid Settlement –Total received to date is $2,952.96. $0.00 expended. Working with PD 
on possible uses of funds and application of opioid settlement grant.   

8. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) – Projects completed to date include: gWorks Software, 
RV Park Electrical Upgrade. Funds used to date: $23,851.40. Projects pending to date 
include: KDOT TA Downtown Streetscape Project. Remaining Funds: $152,106.96.  



Meeting Minutes                                                                                                                       Page 3 
 

9. Automatic Water Meters – 16 meters left to install. Waiting on more meters. Anticipated 
delivery is September. 

10. KDHE Lead & Copper Lead & Copper Inventory due to KDHE by October 16, 2024. Submitted 
grant application to KDHE for technical assistance.  

 
Public Works: 
Water: 
Located the beginning of the spring line at the city lake (Walked 3 miles ) Need to make access 
route to them at some point in the future  
Capped the spring line coming from the lake until they finish putting in the new power poles  
Ordered the security camera system for the water plant  
Sewers: 
Sewer project going well.  Assisting them when and where I can, do locates as needed 
Streets: 
Painted the parking lines on Broadway and will be doing the park as soon as we get more supplies 
in 
Fixed the alley behind the post office  
Regraded the alley between Oak and Walnut 600 block 
Working on the brick repair by the Methodist church Poured 8 yards of concrete. Weather 
depending we should be finished this week  
Parks: 
Sprayed the grass/weeds along the parade route  
Going to be cleaning the parade route soon as needed  
 
Police: 
Read a book to the Summer Reading kids at the Delaware Township Library. After reading, the kids 
went outside and climbed into the JFCO ambulance and one of the patrol cars  
Charger is in getting new brakes  
Received the new access point from Motorola for the wireless cameras. The charger and explorer will 
be taken to TFM to have the equipment installed to make those cameras wireless as well  
Completed all the necessary paperwork for Cary Brosa as a new Part Time Police Officer. Brosa is 
currently the IT  
Director for the USD 338 School District. He comes with previous law enforcement, corrections, and 
dispatch experience. He competes in shooting competitions on the civilian side, and is our firearms 
lead officer  
 
Pool: 
Public swim lessons are now completed. Due to weather, the last day of Winchester class was 
canceled. The town contact (Judy Scott) made the decision not to return on Friday. The kids received 
their class information and treats. The kids rode the bus on Thursday but the weather prevented 
them from having class. Lessons at 10 and 11 went as planned. Providing private lessons. Not taking 
any additional private lessons until we can get more off the list. There will be an evening Preschool 
class in July, but no other public lessons. This class is full. Have sold 77 family passes this season. The 
first community pool party was June 25th. John organized with a few staff members. There were 48 
people in attendance. Next community party is in the works - Christmas in July for the 25th. Pool 
parties are picking up. Have at least 6 for July and 5 already for August. Water Aerobic attendance is 



Meeting Minutes                                                                                                                       Page 4 
 

also picking up. May need to purchase additional equipment to replace some that is getting worn 
out. (Noodles, belts and weights) Ice cream stocked up for July 4th free swim. 1:00-5:00.  
Purchases -small basketball goal for smaller children to play with in zero entry area -wheeled mesh 
cart to hold water aerobic equipment for the noon adult swimmers. -outdoor clock to replace the old 
clock that was no longer working.  
Donations ● Received a smaller outdoor clock from Julie Craft. ● Received 2 new bar stools from 
Steve and Lana Pruett. ● Picked up an extra umbrella stand for the deck from a state co-worker. ● 
Spencer Doughramaji used his welding skills to repair the older umbrella stand. I asked if he needed 
to purchase any supplies. He said no. I did give him ice cream for his work and asked if he wanted to 
swim. ● Donated an air compressor from my dad’s (Merle Strole) belongs. This will be handy for pool 
parties to air up any inflatables.This will be stored in the shed. 
Issues/Concerns -Getting chemical and water test kit from Hawkins. Suppose to be delivered July 3rd. 
Took over two weeks. Still waiting on the kit that was ordered on Amazon. -The wooden benches that 
came from the old pool need to be replaced or refinished. There are at least 6 benches at the pool. 
Three on deck and three in the shelter house area. -The staff have already started discussing their 
plans for next season. Several of the experienced staff will not be returning. This will have a huge 
impact on swim lessons. Closing Saturday, August 12th. Currently there are parties scheduled for the 
8th, 10th, 11th and 12th (morning). 
 
Mayor:  No Report. 
Fire District:  No Report. 
Economic Development Board:  No Report 
Planning & Zoning Commission:  No Report 
City Council Comments:  None. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION 
Jennifer made the motion to recess into executive session to discuss an individuals employee’s 
performance pursuant to non-elected personnel matter exception KSA 75-4319 (b) (1) to include: the 
city administrator. The open meeting resumed at 7:50 PM.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
Gary made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Judy seconded the motion.  Motion carried 5-0 
adjourning the meeting at 7:53 PM. 
 
 
 

APPROVED: __________________________ 
 JEANETTE SHIPLEY, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST:  ___________________________________ 
 CHRISTINE WEISHAAR, CITY CLERK 



417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 

 

   
  

 
 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 
 
This is a business meeting of the governing body for the City of Valley Falls. We strive to run a smooth and 
efficient meeting. 
 
Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes per person. Speakers shall state their name and address. This is 
intended for citizens to express their views. City Council Members will not engage in dialogue with the 
speaker. Belligerent, rude, and offensive speakers will be stopped immediately. Citizen should reach out to 
City Council Members to have personal discussion of their concerns outside of City Council Meetings.  
 
Any comment for agenda items shall be taken only during the specific agenda item.  All questions posed 
during public forum should be answered within the specific agenda item by any City Council Member or 
followed up as needed by staff in a timely manner during regular business hours following the meeting. 
 
Citizens desiring to comment on matters of a general nature, not specific to an agenda item, shall sign up in 
advance of the meeting & shall provide name and address, and the purpose or nature of the request. This 
request should be received by the City Administrator before Friday at noon preceding the meeting. No action 
or formal comment will be taken on such request at the council meeting. Staff will follow up in a timely 
manner during regular business hours following the meeting. 
 
  
 



Grasshopper Falls Day Request 
September 23, 2023 

 

 Broadway Street Closure of 300 – 400 block 
 Waiver of Solicitors Permits for vendors 
 4 benches  
 Barricades 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-05 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON PUBLIC 
STREETS DURING THE 2023 GRASSHOPPER FALLS DAY COMMUNITY EVENT  

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved 2023 Grasshopper Falls Day as a community event to occur 
on September 23, 2023.   

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved the 300 block and 400 block of Broadway to be closed to 
vehicular traffic.  Such street closure shall be approved from 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. with the 
consumption of alcoholic liquor allowed thereon from 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, September 
23, 2023.   

WHEREAS, the consumption of alcoholic liquor at the Grasshopper Falls Day event will be authorized 
by one of the options set forth in both Section Chapter 3, Article 7 of the Code of the City of Valley Falls 
and K.S.A. 41-719(a)(2), and any temporary permit or temporary extension of licensed premises required 
has been applied for and will be issued by the State of Kansas upon the presentation of this Resolution, or 
any caterer’s notification will be made as required by law.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council, pursuant to Chapter 3, Article 7 of the 
Code of the City of Valley Falls, and in consideration of the factors set forth in Chapter 3, Article 7 of the 
Code of the City of Valley Falls, grants its approval for the consumption of alcoholic liquor on the city 
streets, sidewalks and public right of ways which are located within the designated event area of 
Grasshopper Falls Day event to occur from 8:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, September 23, 2023 as 
set forth above.   

ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Valley Falls, Kansas, this 2nd day of August, 2023.  

CITY OF VALLEY FALLS, KANSAS 

 

_______________________________________      

Jeanette Shipley, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________  

Christine Weishaar, City Clerk 



Octoberfest Request 
September 30, 2023 

 

 Use of City Park/ Shelter 
 Beer Garden in City Park 
 Waiver of Solicitors Permits for vendors 
 Mary Street Closure (Elm to Frazier)  
 Trash Cans   



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON PUBLIC 
PROPERTY DURING THE 2023 OCTOBERFEST COMMUNITY EVENT  

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved as the 2023 Octoberfest as a community event to occur on 
September 30, 2023.   

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved the consumption of alcohol in the city park. The consumption 
of alcoholic liquor allowed thereon from 4:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. on Saturday, September 30, 2023.   

WHEREAS, the consumption of alcoholic liquor at the Octoberfest event will be authorized by one of the 
options set forth in both Section Chapter 3, Article 7 of the Code of the City of Valley Falls and K.S.A. 
41-719(a)(2), and any temporary permit or temporary extension of licensed premises required has been 
applied for and will be issued by the State of Kansas upon the presentation of this Resolution, or any 
caterer’s notification will be made as required by law.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council, pursuant to Chapter 3, Article 7 of the 
Code of the City of Valley Falls, and in consideration of the factors set forth in Chapter 3, Article 7 of the 
Code of the City of Valley Falls, grants its approval for the consumption of alcoholic liquor on the city 
streets, sidewalks, public right of ways and city park which are located within the designated event area of 
Octoberfest event to occur from 4:00 p.m. to 10:00 p.m. on Saturday, September 30, 2023 as set forth 
above.   

ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Valley Falls, Kansas, this 2nd day of August, 2023.  

CITY OF VALLEY FALLS, KANSAS 

 

_______________________________________      

Jeanette Shipley, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________  

Christine Weishaar, City Clerk 



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-06 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CONSUMPTION OF ALCOHOLIC LIQUOR ON PUBLIC 
PROPERTY DURING THE PARTY IN THE PARK COMMUNITY EVENT  

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved as the 2023 Party in the Park as a community event to occur 
on October 21, 2023.   

WHEREAS, the City Council has approved the consumption of alcohol in the city park. The consumption 
of alcoholic liquor allowed thereon from 4:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, October 21, 2023.   

WHEREAS, the consumption of alcoholic liquor at the Party in the Park event will be authorized by one 
of the options set forth in both Section Chapter 3, Article 7 of the Code of the City of Valley Falls and 
K.S.A. 41-719(a)(2), and any temporary permit or temporary extension of licensed premises required has 
been applied for and will be issued by the State of Kansas upon the presentation of this Resolution, or any 
caterer’s notification will be made as required by law.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council, pursuant to Chapter 3, Article 7 of the 
Code of the City of Valley Falls, and in consideration of the factors set forth in Chapter 3, Article 7 of the 
Code of the City of Valley Falls, grants its approval for the consumption of alcoholic liquor on the city 
streets, sidewalks, public right of ways and city park which are located within the designated event area of 
Party in the Park event to occur from 4:00 p.m. to 11:00 p.m. on Saturday, October 21, 2023 as set forth 
above.   

ADOPTED by the governing body of the City of Valley Falls, Kansas, this 2nd day of August, 2023.  

CITY OF VALLEY FALLS, KANSAS 

 

_______________________________________      

Jeanette Shipley, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________________  

Christine Weishaar, City Clerk 



417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1854 

 

   
  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 14-119 

 
AN ORDINANCE REGULATING TRAFFIC WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VALLEY 
FALLS, KANSAS; INCORPORATING BY REFERENCE THE STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE FOR KANSAS 
CITIES, 50TH EDITION, *WITH CERTAIN OMISSIONS, CHANGES, AND ADDITIONS; PRESCRIBING 
ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS; PROVIDING CERTAIN PENALTIES AND REPEALING ORDINANCES 
NUMBERED 14-118. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF VALLEY FALLS: 
 
SECTION 1. INCORPORATING STANDARD TRAFFIC ORDINANCE.  
There is hereby incorporated by reference for the purpose of regulating traffic within the 
corporate limits of the City of Valley Falls, Kansas, that certain standard traffic ordinance known as 
the Standard Traffic Ordinance for Kansas Cities, 50th Edition, prepared and published in book form 
by the League of Kansas Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas. One copy of said Standard Traffic Ordinance 
shall be marked or stamped “Official Copy as Adopted by Ordinance No. 14-119,” *with all sections or 
portions thereof intended to be omitted or changed clearly marked to show any such omission or 
change and to which shall be attached a copy of this ordinance and filed with the city clerk to be 
open to inspection and available to the public at all reasonable hours. The police department, 
municipal judge, and all administrative departments of the city charged with enforcement of the 
ordinance shall be supplied, at the cost of the city, such number of official copies of such Standard 
Traffic Ordinance similarly marked, as may be deemed expedient. 
 
SECTION 2. TRAFFIC INFRACTIONS AND TRAFFIC OFFENSES. 
(a) An ordinance traffic infraction is a violation of any section of this ordinance that prescribes or 
requires the same behavior as that prescribed or required by a statutory provision that is classified as 
a traffic infraction in K.S.A. 8-2118. 
(b) All traffic violations that are included within this ordinance, and are not ordinance traffic 
infractions, as defined in subsection (a) of this section, shall be considered traffic offenses. 
 
SECTION 3. PENALTY FOR SCHEDULED FINES.  
The fine for violation of an ordinance traffic infraction or any other traffic offense in which the 
municipal judge establishes a fine in a fine schedule shall not be less than $15.00 nor more than 
$2500.00. A person tried and convicted for violation of an ordinance traffic infraction or other traffic 
offense in which a fine has not been established in a schedule of fines shall pay a fine fixed by the 
court not to exceed $500. 
 
SECTION 4. REPEAL.  
Ordinance numbered 14-118 is repealed. 
 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.  
This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in Valley Falls 
Vindicator, the official City paper of the City of Valley Falls, Jefferson County, Kansas. 
 



417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org                                                                                                                                                                              Page 2  

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON THE 2ND DAY OF AUGUST, 2023. 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
Jeanette Shipley, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Christine Weishaar, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 



417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1854 

 

   
  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 11-117 

 
AN ORDINANCE REGULATING PUBLIC OFFENSES WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VALLEY 
FALLS, KANSAS; INCORPORATING BY REFERENCE THE UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE FOR KANSAS CITIES, 
39TH EDITION, *WITH CERTAIN OMISSIONS, CHANGES, AND ADDITIONS; PRESCRIBING ADDITIONAL 
REGULATIONS; PROVIDING CERTAIN PENALTIES AND REPEALING ORDINANCES NUMBERED 11-116. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF VALLEY FALLS: 
 
SECTION 1. INCORPORATING UNIFORM PUBLIC OFFENSE CODE.  
There is hereby incorporated by reference for the purpose of regulating public offenses within the corporate 
limits of the City of Valley Falls, Kansas, that certain code known as the Uniform Public Offense Code, 39th 
Edition, prepared and published in book form by the League of Kansas Municipalities, Topeka, Kansas. One 
official copy of said Uniform Public Offense Code shall be marked or stamped “Official Copy as Adopted by 
Ordinance No. 11-117,” *with all sections or portions thereof intended to be omitted or changed clearly 
marked to show any such omission or change and to which shall be attached a copy of this ordinance and filed 
with the city clerk to be open to inspection and available to the public at all reasonable hours. 
 
SECTION 2. REPEAL.  
Ordinance number 11-116 is repealed. 
 
SECTION 3. EFFECTIVE DATE.  
This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after its publication in the official city newspaper. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL ON THE 2nd DAY OF AUGUST, 2023. 
 
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Jeanette Shipley, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Christine Weishaar, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 



Cost Analysis 
BCBS Plans 

Grandfathered Plan 
Deductible: $500 per person / $1,000 family 
Max Out of Pocket: $1,000 per person / $2,000 family  
Specialist Co-pay: $25 
Prescription Drug: $15 generic/ $30 non-preferred / $45 brand 
Hospice/ Home Social Work Visits: 100% coverage 
Emergency Room: $100 copay the subject to deductible then 20% coinsurance 
Preventative Care: deductible then 20% coinsurance 
Lab/ Radiology/ Imaging: $300 at 100%, then deductible then 20% coinsurance 
 
*Plan cost are based on average age of city group. 
Plan Cost Monthly  Annual 
City $5,554 $66,648 
Employee $1,427 $17,124 
TOTAL Cost $6,981 $83,772 

 
BCBS Proposal  
Deductible: $500 per person / $1,000 family 
Max Out of Pocket: $1,500 per person / $3,000 family 
Specialist Co-pay: $50 
Prescription Drug: $15 generic/ $35 non-preferred / $65 brand 
Hospice/ Home Social Work Visits: deductible then 20% coinsurance 
Emergency Room: deductible then 20% coinsurance 
Preventative Care: $0 
Lab/ Radiology/ Imaging: $300 at 100%, then deductible then 20% coinsurance 
 
*Plan cost are based on age of individual employee. 
Plan Cost Monthly  Annual 
City $6,411 $76,932 
Employee $1,281 $15,372 
TOTAL Cost $7,692 $92,304 

 
KMIT Proposal 
Deductible: $5,00 per person / $1,000 family 
Max Out of Pocket: $5,000 per person / $10,000 family 
Specialist Co-pay: $25 
Prescription Drug: $15 generic/ $75 non-preferred / $50 brand 
Hospice/ Home Social Work Visits: deductible then 20% coinsurance 
Emergency Room: deductible then 20% coinsurance 
Preventative Care: $0 
Lab/ Radiology/ Imaging: $300 at 100%, then deductible then 20% coinsurance 
 
*Plan cost are based on age of KMIT group. 
Plan Cost Monthly  Annual 
City $5,817 $69,804 
Employee $1,570 $18,840 
TOTAL Cost $7,387 $88,644 

 

















































 

 

 

400 S. KANSAS AVENUE, SUITE 200      TOPEKA, KS 66603     PHONE   785-233-8300          www.pec1.com 

 

July 17, 2023 

 

Ms. Audree Guzman 

City of Valley Falls 

417 Broadway 

Valley Falls, KS 66616 

 

RE: Pay Estimate #1 

 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase1  

 PEC Project No. 200287-003 

 

Dear Audree: 

 

Please find attached Payment Estimate #1.  This request has been reviewed by our office and we 

have discussed progress and quality with the resident observer.  We believe this request should be 

recommended for payment based on our assessment of efforts and overall progress to date. 

 

We would ask that you review the request and execute as appropriate.   

 

The project payment summary is as follows: 

 

 Project Summary: 

 

Original Contract  $ 1,585,218.19 

Total Completed to date of Request No. 1 $ 137,30.68 

 Retainage (10%) $ 13,732.07 

 Previous Payments $ 0.00 

 

 Amount Due This Request $ 123,588.61 

 

      If you have any questions, please call at your earliest convenience. 

 

Sincerely, 

Professional Engineering Consultants, P.A. 

 
Alex M. Darby, P.E. 

 

AMD/tnn 

Attachments 

Cc: Eric McCormack, Havens Construction Co., Inc  
 

U:\Topeka\2020\200287\003\Admin\Contract\Pay Request _SSRehabPh1 PELtr1.docx 



Project Manager

07/14/2023



C20 3043 01

200287-002-6732
23008A

1 Application Period: From 4/20/2023 to 5/20/2023 6/21/2023

A C D E F G H I J K L

Item Quantity Units Unit Price ($)
Value of Bid Item (C X E)

($)
Estimated Quantity 

Incorporated in the Work

Value of Work Completed to 
Date (E X G)

($)

1 1 LS  $                  59,927.08  $                              59,927.08 1  $                                      59,927.08  $                               59,927.08 100%  $                                                -   
2 20 EA  $                    7,739.36  $                            154,787.20 10  $                                      77,393.60  $                               77,393.60 50%  $                                 77,393.60 
3 7769 LF  $                         35.82  $                            278,285.58  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                               278,285.58 
4 1458 LF  $                         42.94  $                              62,606.52  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 62,606.52 
5 17 LF  $                       503.64  $                                 8,561.88  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    8,561.88 
6 1438 LF  $                            7.00  $                              10,066.00  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 10,066.00 
7 224 EA  $                         49.96  $                              11,191.04  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 11,191.04 
8 45 EA  $                    7,499.01  $                            337,455.45  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                               337,455.45 
9 180 VF  $                       344.56  $                              62,020.80  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 62,020.80 

10 27 EA  $                    9,761.75  $                            263,567.25  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                               263,567.25 
11 31 VF  $                       247.16  $                                 7,661.96  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    7,661.96 
12 34 EA  $                    4,668.46  $                            158,727.64  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                               158,727.64 
13 210 VF  $                       344.56  $                              72,357.60  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 72,357.60 
14 4 4  $                    1,381.20  $                                 5,524.80  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    5,524.80 
15 10 10  $                       265.74  $                                 2,657.40  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    2,657.40 
16 11156 LF  $                            2.50  $                              27,890.00  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 27,890.00 
17 1 1  $                    3,625.25  $                                 3,625.25  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    3,625.25 
18 6767 LF  $                            2.50  $                              16,917.50  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 16,917.50 
19 3 EA  $                    1,594.46  $                                 4,783.38  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    4,783.38 
20 1 LS  $                  23,133.36  $                              23,133.36  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 23,133.36 
21 1 LS  $                    9,566.72  $                                 9,566.72  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    9,566.72 
22 1 LS  $                    2,840.81  $                                 2,840.81  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    2,840.81 
23 1 LS  $                    1,062.97  $                                 1,062.97  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    1,062.97 

 $                         1,585,218.19  $                                    137,320.68  $                                    -    $                             137,320.68  $                            1,447,897.51 

B

Owner:

Contractor's Application for Payment

Owner's Project No.:
Engineer's Project No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer:

Contractor:

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Professional Engineering Consultants, P.A.

200287-002-6732

Havens Construction Co, Inc.

City of Valley Falls, Kansas

Application Date:

% of Value of 
Item
(J / F)

(%)

Balance to Finish (F
- J)
($)

Change Orders
Bid Item No. Description

Contract Information Work Completed

Materials Currently 
Stored (not in G) ($)

8" Pipe Rehabilitation (CIPP Lining)
10" Pipe Rehabilitation (CIPP Lining)

Mobilization
Sanitary Sewer Point Repair

Work Completed and 
Materials Stored to Date (H 

+ I)
($)

Locate, Raise, and Rehab Buried Manhole Extra Depth
Manhole Replacement (0-6 feet)

Sewer Service Reestablishment (CIPP)
Locate, Raise, and Rehab Buried Manhole

16" Pipe Rehabilitation (CIPP Lining)
Sanitary Sewer Heaby Cleaning

Manhole Step Removal
Pre-Rehabilitation/Repair CCTV Inspection

Manhole Full Rehabilitation Extra Depth
Manhole Frame and Cover

Manhole Replacement Extra Depth
Manhole Full Rehabilitation (0-6 feet)

Additional CCTV Inspection and Cleaning
Additional Manhole 3D Inspection
Traffic Control
Construction Staking

Bypass Pumping

Change Order Totals

Original Contract and Change Orders

Seed, Fertilize, and Mulch
Erosion Control

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 1Project:

Contract:

Application No.:



 

 

 

400 S. KANSAS AVENUE, SUITE 200      TOPEKA, KS 66603     PHONE   785-233-8300          www.pec1.com 

 

July 26, 2023 

 

Ms. Audree Guzman 

City of Valley Falls 

417 Broadway 

Valley Falls, KS 66616 

 

RE: Pay Estimate #2 

 Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase1  

 PEC Project No. 200287-003 

 

Dear Audree: 

 

Please find attached Payment Estimate #2.  This request has been reviewed by our office and we 

have discussed progress and quality with the resident observer.  We believe this request should be 

recommended for payment based on our assessment of efforts and overall progress to date. 

 

We would ask that you review the request and execute as appropriate.   

 

The project payment summary is as follows: 

 

 Project Summary: 

 

Original Contract  $ 1,585,218.19 

Total Completed to date of Request No. 2 $ 316,095.28 

 Retainage (10%) $ 31,609.53 

 Previous Payments $ 123,588.61 

 

 Amount Due This Request $ 160,897.14 

 

      If you have any questions, please call at your earliest convenience. 

 

Sincerely, 

Professional Engineering Consultants, P.A. 

 
Alex M. Darby, P.E. 

 

AMD/tnn 

Attachments 

Cc: Eric McCormack, Havens Construction Co., Inc  
 

U:\Topeka\2020\200287\003\Admin\Contract\Pay Request _SSRehabPh1 PELtr2.docx 



Project Manager

7-26-2023



C20 3043 01

200287-002-6732
23008A

2 Application Period: From 5/20/2023 to 6/20/2023 6/21/2023

A C D E F G H I J K L

Item Quantity Units Unit Price ($)
Value of Bid Item (C X E)

($)
Estimated Quantity 

Incorporated in the Work

Value of Work Completed to 
Date (E X G)

($)

1 1 LS  $                  59,927.08  $                              59,927.08  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 59,927.08 
2 20 EA  $                    7,739.36  $                            154,787.20 5  $                                      38,696.80  $                               38,696.80 25%  $                               116,090.40 
3 7769 LF  $                         35.82  $                            278,285.58  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                               278,285.58 
4 1458 LF  $                         42.94  $                              62,606.52  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 62,606.52 
5 17 LF  $                       503.64  $                                 8,561.88  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    8,561.88 
6 1438 LF  $                            7.00  $                              10,066.00 190  $                                        1,330.00  $                                 1,330.00 13%  $                                    8,736.00 
7 224 EA  $                         49.96  $                              11,191.04  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 11,191.04 
8 45 EA  $                    7,499.01  $                            337,455.45 6.9  $                                      51,743.17  $                               51,743.17 15%  $                               285,712.28 
9 180 VF  $                       344.56  $                              62,020.80 0  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 62,020.80 

10 27 EA  $                    9,761.75  $                            263,567.25 10  $                                      97,617.50  $                               97,617.50 37%  $                               165,949.75 
11 31 VF  $                       247.16  $                                 7,661.96  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    7,661.96 
12 34 EA  $                    4,668.46  $                            158,727.64 20.97  $                                      97,897.61  $                               97,897.61 62%  $                                 60,830.03 
13 210 VF  $                       344.56  $                              72,357.60 40.3  $                                      13,885.77  $                               13,885.77 19%  $                                 58,471.83 
14 4 4  $                    1,381.20  $                                 5,524.80  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    5,524.80 
15 10 10  $                       265.74  $                                 2,657.40 6  $                                        1,594.44  $                                 1,594.44 60%  $                                    1,062.96 
16 11156 LF  $                            2.50  $                              27,890.00 3495  $                                        8,737.50  $                                 8,737.50 31%  $                                 19,152.50 
17 1 1  $                    3,625.25  $                                 3,625.25  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    3,625.25 
18 6767 LF  $                            2.50  $                              16,917.50 1837  $                                        4,592.50  $                                 4,592.50 27%  $                                 12,325.00 
19 3 EA  $                    1,594.46  $                                 4,783.38  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    4,783.38 
20 1 LS  $                  23,133.36  $                              23,133.36  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                 23,133.36 
21 1 LS  $                    9,566.72  $                                 9,566.72  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    9,566.72 
22 1 LS  $                    2,840.81  $                                 2,840.81  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    2,840.81 
23 1 LS  $                    1,062.97  $                                 1,062.97  $                                                     -    $                                              -   0%  $                                    1,062.97 

 $                         1,585,218.19  $                                    316,095.28  $                                    -    $                             316,095.28  $                            1,269,122.91 

B

Owner:

Contractor's Application for Payment

Owner's Project No.:
Engineer's Project No.:

Contractor's Project No.:

Engineer:

Contractor:

Progress Estimate - Unit Price Work                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

Professional Engineering Consultants, P.A.

200287-002-6732

Havens Construction Co, Inc.

City of Valley Falls, Kansas

Application Date:

% of Value of 
Item
(J / F)

(%)

Balance to Finish (F
- J)
($)

Change Orders
Bid Item No. Description

Contract Information Work Completed

Materials Currently 
Stored (not in G) ($)

8" Pipe Rehabilitation (CIPP Lining)
10" Pipe Rehabilitation (CIPP Lining)

Mobilization
Sanitary Sewer Point Repair

Work Completed and 
Materials Stored to Date (H 

+ I)
($)

Locate, Raise, and Rehab Buried Manhole Extra Depth
Manhole Replacement (0-6 feet)

Sewer Service Reestablishment (CIPP)
Locate, Raise, and Rehab Buried Manhole

16" Pipe Rehabilitation (CIPP Lining)
Sanitary Sewer Heaby Cleaning

Manhole Step Removal
Pre-Rehabilitation/Repair CCTV Inspection

Manhole Full Rehabilitation Extra Depth
Manhole Frame and Cover

Manhole Replacement Extra Depth
Manhole Full Rehabilitation (0-6 feet)

Additional CCTV Inspection and Cleaning
Additional Manhole 3D Inspection
Traffic Control
Construction Staking

Bypass Pumping

Change Order Totals

Original Contract and Change Orders

Seed, Fertilize, and Mulch
Erosion Control

Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Phase 1Project:

Contract:

Application No.:



Quantity Breakdown for Selected Items
5/20 to 6/20

69% 11% 20% 69% 11% 20% 69% 11% 20%
8 Locate, Raise, and Rehab Buried Manhole 0-6Ft 45 EA  $    7,499.01 337,455.45$        Raise Manhole To GradeCementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Raise Manhole To GradeCementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Raise Manhole To Grade Cementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension

Manhole 25 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 29 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 34 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 77 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 81 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 80-1 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 89 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 16 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 18 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 24 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 40 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 43 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 44 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 46 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 53 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 54 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 10 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 11 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 101 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 86 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 65 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 126 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 127 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 130 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 131 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 133 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 135 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 136 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 137 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 142 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 5 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 6 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 7 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 122 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 141-1 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 144 1 0.69 5,174.32$             0 -$                      1 0 0 0.69 5,174.32$      

Manhole 3 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 4 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 154 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 156 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 156-1 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 159 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 148 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 150 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 152 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Manhole 153 0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

0 -$                      0 -$                      0 0 0 0 -$              

Total QTY TD 10 0 0 6.9 51,743.17$           0 0 0 0 -$                      10 0 0 6.9 51,743.17$    

Percent Breakdown

Previous Quanity

Percent Breakdown

Current Period Quantity

Percent Breakdown

Total Quanity To Date



Quantity Breakdown for Selected Items

5/20 to 6/20

32% 68% 32% 68% 32% 68%

9 Locate, Raise, and Rehab Buried Manhole Extra Depth 180 VF  $       344.56 62,020.80$         Cementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Cementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Cementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension
Manhole 25 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 29 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 34 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 77 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 81 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 80-1 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 89 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 16 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 18 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 24 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 40 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 43 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 44 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 46 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 53 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 54 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 10 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 11 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 101 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 86 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 65 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 126 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 127 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 130 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 131 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 133 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 135 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 136 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 137 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 142 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 5 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 6 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 7 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 122 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 141-1 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 144 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 3 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 4 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 154 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 156 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 156-1 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 159 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 148 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 150 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 152 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Manhole 153 0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

0 -$               0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Total QTY TD 0 0 0 -$               0 0 0 -$                    0 0 0 -$               

Percent Breakdown

Current Period Breakdown Previous Quantities Total Quantities To Date

Percent Breakdown Percent Breakdown



Quantity Breakdown for Selected Items
5/20 to 6/20

47% 21% 32% 47% 21% 32% 47% 21% 32%

12 Manhole Full Rehabilitation (0-6 feet) 34 EA  $    4,668.46 158,727.64$        Replace Casting Cementitious Lining Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Replace Casting Cementitious Lining Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Replace Casting Cementitious Lining Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension
Manhole 59 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 67 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 68 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 74 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 75 1 0.47 2,194.18$      0 -$              1 0 0.47 2,194.18$        

Manhole 79 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 58 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 61 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 80 1 0.47 2,194.18$      0 -$              1 0 0.47 2,194.18$        

Manhole 82 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 83 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 88 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 90 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 92 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 93 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 94 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 14 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 45 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 48 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 49 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 50 1 0.47 2,194.18$      0 -$              1 0 0.47 2,194.18$        

Manhole 63 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 64 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 84 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 85 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 95 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 96 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 97 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 9 0 -$              0 -$              0 0 0 -$                 

Manhole 55 1 1 0.68 3,174.55$      0 -$              1 1 0.68 3,174.55$        

Manhole 56 1 0.47 2,194.18$      0 -$              1 0 0.47 2,194.18$        

Manhole 128 1 0.47 2,194.18$      0 -$              1 0 0.47 2,194.18$        

Manhole 8 1 0.47 2,194.18$      0 -$              1 0 0.47 2,194.18$        

Manhole 140 1 0.47 2,194.18$      0 -$              1 0 0.47 2,194.18$        

Total QTY TD 33 26 0 20.97 97,897.61$    0 0 0 0 -$              33 26 0 20.97 97,897.61$      

Percent Breakdown

Total Quantity To DatePrevious QuantityCurrent Period Quantity

Percent Breakdown Percent Breakdown



Quantity Breakdown for Selected Items

5/20 to 6/20

31% 69% 31% 69% 31% 69%

13 Manhole Full Rehabilitation Extra Depth 210 VF  $        344.56 72,357.60$          Cementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Cementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension Cementitious Line Epoxy Line Total QTY Extension
Manhole 59 2.4 0.744 256.35$                 0 -$                        2.4 0 0.744 256.35$                
Manhole 67 1.5 0.465 160.22$                 0 -$                        1.5 0 0.465 160.22$                
Manhole 68 9 2.79 961.32$                 0 -$                        9 0 2.79 961.32$                
Manhole 74 6 1.86 640.88$                 0 -$                        6 0 1.86 640.88$                
Manhole 75 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       
Manhole 79 14.5 4.495 1,548.80$             0 -$                        14.5 0 4.495 1,548.80$            
Manhole 58 4.4 1.364 469.98$                 0 -$                        4.4 0 1.364 469.98$                
Manhole 61 4.5 1.395 480.66$                 0 -$                        4.5 0 1.395 480.66$                
Manhole 80 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       
Manhole 82 2.5 0.775 267.03$                 0 -$                        2.5 0 0.775 267.03$                
Manhole 83 4.5 1.395 480.66$                 0 -$                        4.5 0 1.395 480.66$                
Manhole 88 3.3 1.023 352.48$                 0 -$                        3.3 0 1.023 352.48$                
Manhole 90 4.6 1.426 491.34$                 0 -$                        4.6 0 1.426 491.34$                
Manhole 92 2.5 0.775 267.03$                 0 -$                        2.5 0 0.775 267.03$                
Manhole 93 3.8 1.178 405.89$                 0 -$                        3.8 0 1.178 405.89$                
Manhole 94 7.7 2.387 822.46$                 0 -$                        7.7 0 2.387 822.46$                
Manhole 14 3.1 0.961 331.12$                 0 -$                        3.1 0 0.961 331.12$                
Manhole 45 4.5 1.395 480.66$                 0 -$                        4.5 0 1.395 480.66$                
Manhole 48 5 1.55 534.07$                 0 -$                        5 0 1.55 534.07$                
Manhole 49 6.8 2.108 726.33$                 0 -$                        6.8 0 2.108 726.33$                
Manhole 50 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       
Manhole 63 3.3 1.023 352.48$                 0 -$                        3.3 0 1.023 352.48$                
Manhole 64 9.6 2.976 1,025.41$             0 -$                        9.6 0 2.976 1,025.41$            
Manhole 84 4.8 1.488 512.71$                 0 -$                        4.8 0 1.488 512.71$                
Manhole 85 0.4 0.124 42.73$                   0 -$                        0.4 0 0.124 42.73$                  
Manhole 95 13.5 4.185 1,441.98$             0 -$                        13.5 0 4.185 1,441.98$            
Manhole 96 3.6 1.116 384.53$                 0 -$                        3.6 0 1.116 384.53$                
Manhole 97 0.2 0.062 21.36$                   0 -$                        0.2 0 0.062 21.36$                  
Manhole 9 4 1.24 427.25$                 0 -$                        4 0 1.24 427.25$                
Manhole 55 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       
Manhole 56 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       
Manhole 128 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       
Manhole 8 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       
Manhole 140 0 -$                        0 -$                        0 0 0 -$                       

Total QTY TD 130 0 40.3 13,885.77$            0 0 0 -$                       130 0 40.3 13,885.77$           

Percent Breakdown

Total Quantity Complete To Date

Percent Breakdown Percent Breakdown

This hereby signifies acceptance of the June 2023 SOV quantities above.



    



Includes copyrighted material of Insurance Services Office, Inc. with its permission.

BP-F-115 (07-09) Policy Number: 9346544       Transaction Effective Date: 12-01-2022

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following:

BUSINESSOWNERS LIABILITY COVERAGE FORM

Paragraph Who Is An Insured is amended to include as an additional insured any person or organization,
other than a joint venture, for whom you are performing operations when you and such person or organization
have agreed in writing in a contract or agreement that such person or organization be added as an additional
insured on your policy. Such person or organization is an additional insured only with respect to liability for
"bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" caused, in whole or in part, by:

Your acts or omissions; or

The acts or omissions of those acting on your behalf;

in the performance of your ongoing operations for the additional insured.

A person's or organization's status as an additional insured under this endorsement ends when your
operations for that additional insured are completed.

This additional insurance does not apply to:

An employee, association of employees or labor union, except with respect to work performed by or for
you for such employee, association of employees or labor union under direct contract between you as
contractor and such employee, association of employees or labor union as owners;

Any railroad company except with respect to work performed by or for you for such railroad company
under direct contract or agreement between you and such railroad company;

Any person or organization whose profession, business or occupation is that of an architect, surveyor or
engineer with respect to liability arising out of the preparation or approval of or the failure in preparation
or approval of maps, shop drawings, opinions, reports, surveys, field orders, change orders, designs,
drawings, specifications or the performance of any other professional services by such person or
organization; or

Any of your Subcontractors, or any partner, officer, agent or employee of such Subcontractor.

The Coverage extended to any additional insured by this endorsement is limited to, and subject to, all terms,
conditions, and exclusions of the coverage form to which this endorsement is attached.

In addition, Coverage shall not exceed the terms and conditions that are required by the terms of the written
agreement to add any insured, or to procure insurance.

In the event that the Limits of Insurance shown in the Declarations exceeds the limits of liability required in a
written contract or written agreement for an additional insured, the insurance provided to the additional
insured shall be limited to the limits of liability required by that written contract or written agreement.

Additional Exclusions

The insurance afforded to any person or organization as an insured under this endorsement does not apply:

To "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" which occurs prior to the date
of your contract with such person or organization;

To "bodily injury" or "property damage" included within the "products - completed operations hazard"; or

To "bodily injury", "property damage" or "personal and advertising injury" arising out of the sole
negligence of any person or organization that would not be an insured except for this endorsement.

FEDERATED INSURANCE COMPANIES

THIS ENDORSEMENT MODIFIES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY.

A. C.

1.

2.

1.

2.

3.

4.

B.

C.

D.

1.

2.

3.

ADDITIONAL INSURED BY CONTRACT ENDORSEMENT

 

 



City of Valley Falls
2024 Budget



Total Final Assessed Valuation One Mill levy Delq %
8,819,803 $8,819.80 2.00%

Fund # of Mills Delq % MVT CMVT RVT 16/20 MVT Ad Valorem LAVTR City/County Rev Sharing Liquor Tax Fuel Tax.

General Fund 100 28.949 $5,106.49 $22,396 $2,404 $340 $76 $255,324 $0 $0 $3,622 $31,200

Taxing Entities Total Mills Percentage
Jefferson County 72.235 42%
USD 338 56.649 33%
City of Valley Falls 28.949 17%
Delaware Fire District No. 11 5.127 3%
Delaware Township Library 2.854 2%
State of Kansas 1.500 1%
Delaware Township 1.638 1%
Valley Falls Rec Commission 1.000 1%
Meadowlark Extension District 1.556 1%

Total 171.508 100%

Tax & Levy Breakdown



Fund Fund Name Fund Type Departments Name
100 General Fund Tax Levy Fund 000 Assets
160 Swimming Pool Reserve Non-Budgeted 050 Liabilities
200 Capital Improvement Non-Budgeted 100 Revenue
300 Special Highway & Streets Non-tax Levy Fund 110 General Administration
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve Non-Budgeted 120 Police
500 Bond & Interest Tax Levy Fund 130 Court
600 Rural Housing Development Incentive (RHID) Non-tax Levy Fund 140 Street
720 Water Utility Non-tax Levy Fund 150 Parks
721 Water Reserve Non-Budgeted 160 Pool
730 Sewer Utility Non-tax Levy Fund 200 Capital Improvement 
731 Sewer Reserve Non-Budgeted 300 Special Highway 
740 Solid Waste (Trash) Non-tax Levy Fund 400 Equipment Reserve
790 Insurance Reserve Non-Budgeted 500 Bond & Interest 

600 RHID
720 Water

730 Sewer
740 Solid Waste

4000 Ad Valorem Property Tax 5010 Full-time Wages 
4010 Motor Vehicle Tax 5020 Part-time Wages
4020 Recreation Tax 5030 Contract Labor
4030 16/20 Trucks 5040 Overtime
4040 Delinquent Personal Tax 5050 Benefits
4050 Sales Tax 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property
4060 Liquor Tax 5110 Training/ Conferences
4062 Fuel Tax 5120 Dues/ Memberships
4064 Connecting Links 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms
4068 In Lieu of Tax 5140 Utilities and Phone
4070 City/ County Revenue Sharing 5150 Facilities Maintenance
4080 LAVTR 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel
4090 Special Assessment 5170 Postage/ Stationary
4100 Grants & Donations 5180 Commodities
4110 Service Fees 5190 Contractual
4120 Permits/ Licenses 5200 Grants
4130 Franchise Fees 5300 Utility Costs
4310 Meter Setting 5310 High Volume Sales
4320 Meter Connection 5360 Utility Sales Tax
4330 Utility Reciepts 5320 RV Park Rental Reimbursement
4340 High Volume Sales 5330 Concessions
4350 Utility Penalties 5340 Animal Control
4360 Utility Sales Tax 5350 Jail Fees
4370 Restitution 5360 Landbank/ Planning Commission
4380 Court Fines and Fees 5400 Principal Payment
4390 RV Park Rent 5410 Interest Payment 
4400 Swimming Pool Receipts 5900 Payment Plans
4410 Swim Pool - Snack Concession 5910 Transfer to General
4420 Swimming Pool- Pool Parties 5911 Transfer to Equip. Reserve
4430 Swimming Pool Leasons 5912 Transfer to Fund Reserve
4440 Lifeguard/ CPR/ First Aid 5913 Transfer to Bond & Interest
4450 Season Tickets 5930 In Lieu of Taxes - County
4460 Landbank/ Planning Commission 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous
4900 Payment Plans 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover
4910 Transfers
4920 Interest Income
4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income
4940 Micellaneous Income
4950 Carryover

Chart of Accounts

Revenue Line Items Expense Line Items



Fund Code Name Total 
100 General Fund $922,965
160 Swimming Pool Reserve $5,500
200 Capital Improvement $193,000
300 Special Highway & Streets $329,307
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve $142,000
500 Bond & Interest $345,000
600 Rural Housing Development Incentive (RHID) $128,000
720 Water Utility $581,175
721 Water Reserve $90,000
730 Sewer Utility $564,778
731 Sewer Reserve $95,000
740 Solid Waste $295,000
790 Insurance Reserve $0

$3,691,725

TOTAL BY FUND

Total Budget



From To Annual Amt. Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec TOTAL
Sewer Fund 730 Sewer Reserve 731 $50,000 $4,900 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $50,000
Sewer Fund 730 Municipal Equipment Res. 400 $55,000 $5,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $55,000
Sewer Fund 730 Bond & Interest Fund 500 $75,000 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $6,250 $75,000
Water Fund 720 Water Reserve 721 $50,000 $4,900 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $4,100 $50,000
Water Fund 720 Municipal Equipment Res. 400 $55,000 $5,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $4,500 $55,000
Capital Improve 200 Special Highway 300 $152,107 $152,107 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $152,107
General Fund 100 Municipal Equipment Res. 400 $30,000 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $2,500 $1,250 $28,750
General Fund 100 Capital Improvement Fund $25,000 $3,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $25,000

$492,107 $184,657 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $27,950 $26,700 $465,857

Transfer In
100 General Fund -$                       
160 Swimming Pool Reserve -$                       
200 Capital Improvement 25,000.00$            
300 Special Highway & Streets 152,107.00$          
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 140,000.00$          
500 Bond & Interest 75,000.00$            
600 RHID -$                       
720 Water Utility -$                       
721 Water Reserve 50,000.00$            
730 Sewer Utility -$                       
731 Sewer Reserve 50,000.00$            
740 Solid Waste (Trash) -$                       
790 Insurance Reserve -$                       

-$                      
-$                      

-$                      
105,000.00$         

-$                      
180,000.00$         

-$                      

-$                      
152,107.00$         

-$                      
-$                      
-$                      

Total Transfers

ANNUAL TRANSFERS

Fund Tranfer Out
55,000.00$           



Type of Debt Date of Issue Date of Retirement Interest Rate Total Amount
Swimming Pool - GO Bond Series 2016 10/26/2016 4/1/2037 3.75% $1,535,000.00

Year Interest Principal Service Fee Total
2024 $37,107.50 $70,000.00 $0.00 $107,107.50
2025 $35,497.50 $70,000.00 $0.00 $105,497.50
2026 $33,747.50 $70,000.00 $0.00 $103,747.50
2027 $31,787.50 $75,000.00 $0.00 $106,787.50
2028 $29,612.50 $75,000.00 $0.00 $104,612.50
2029 $27,187.50 $80,000.00 $0.00 $107,187.50
2030 $24,587.50 $80,000.00 $0.00 $104,587.50
2031 $21,906.25 $85,000.00 $0.00 $106,906.25
2032 $19,037.50 $85,000.00 $0.00 $104,037.50
2033 $15,975.00 $90,000.00 $0.00 $105,975.00
2034 $12,825.00 $90,000.00 $0.00 $102,825.00
2035 $9,468.75 $95,000.00 $0.00 $104,468.75
2036 $5,812.50 $100,000.00 $0.00 $105,812.50
2037 $1,968.75 $105,000.00 $0.00 $106,968.75

$306,521.25 $1,170,000.00 $0.00 $1,476,521.25

Type of Debt Date of Issue Date of Retirement Interest Rate Total Amount
Sewer - KDHE Loan 3/1/2024 9/1/2043 0.93% $1,329,729.00

Date Interest Principal Service Fee Total
2024 $12,231.00 $58,738.00 $4,603.00 $75,572.00
2025 $11,683.00 $59,492.00 $4,397.00 $75,572.00
2026 $11,128.00 $60,256.00 $4,189.00 $75,573.00
2027 $10,566.00 $61,030.00 $3,977.00 $75,573.00
2028 $9,996.00 $61,814.00 $3,762.00 $75,572.00
2029 $9,420.00 $62,607.00 $3,545.00 $75,572.00
2030 $8,835.00 $63,411.00 $3,325.00 $75,571.00
2031 $8,244.00 $64,223.00 $3,103.00 $75,570.00
2032 $7,645.00 $65,050.00 $2,878.00 $75,573.00
2033 $7,038.00 $65,886.00 $2,649.00 $75,573.00
2034 $6,423.00 $66,732.00 $2,418.00 $75,573.00
2035 $5,800.00 $67,589.00 $2,183.00 $75,572.00
2036 $5,170.00 $68,456.00 $1,946.00 $75,572.00
2037 $4,531.00 $69,336.00 $1,706.00 $75,573.00
2038 $3,884.00 $70,226.00 $1,462.00 $75,572.00
2039 $3,229.00 $71,128.00 $1,216.00 $75,573.00
2040 $2,565.00 $72,041.00 $966.00 $75,572.00
2041 $1,893.00 $72,966.00 $713.00 $75,572.00
2042 $1,213.00 $73,903.00 $457.00 $75,573.00
2043 $523.00 $74,852.00 $197.00 $75,572.00

$132,017.00 $1,329,736.00 $49,692.00 $1,511,445.00

Bond & Debt Amortization Schedule



Organization 2024 Budgeted 2023 Budgeted 2022 Budgeted 
Valley Falls Hometown Christmas 100.00$                                       50.00$                              50.00$                      
Fireworks 1,500.00$                                   750.00$                            500.00$                    
Centenarian Easter Egg Hunt 150.00$                                       ‐$                                   -$                          
Jan McKnight Flower Pots 50.00$                                         ‐$                                   -$                          
Misc 200.00$                                       350.00$                            325.00$                           
TOTAL 2,000.00$                                   1,150.00$                         325.00$                           

Fund Account Amount
General 100‐110‐4100 500.00$                           
Water 720‐720‐4100 750.00$                           
Sewer 730‐730‐4100 750.00$                           

2,000.00$                        

Donations

Expense Distribution

TOTAL



Title Department Status Pay Type Base Rate Annual Pay Admin Streets Water Sewer Total
City Administrator Administration Full-Time Salary 32.61$              $67,823.11 40% 30% 30% 100%
City Clerk Administration Full-Time Hourly 18.61$              $38,708.80 40% 30% 30% 100%
Chief of Police Police Full-Time Salary 24.52$              $51,000.00 100% 100%
Officer 1 Police Full-Time Hourly 20.14$              $41,891.20 100% 100%
Officer 2 Police Full-Time Hourly 19.00$              $39,520.00 100% 100%
Public Works Director Public Works Full-Time Salary 28.39$              $59,060.25 20% 40% 40% 100%
Public Works Laborer 1 Public Works Full-Time Hourly 22.18$              $46,134.40 20% 40% 40% 100%
Public Works Laborer 2 Public Works Full-Time Hourly 19.10$              $39,728.00 20% 40% 40% 100%
Officers Part-Time Police Part-Time Hourly 17.25$              $10,000.00 100% 100%
Mayor Administration Elected Monthly 40.00$              $480.00 100% 100%
Council Member Administration Elected Monthly 40.00$              $480.00 100% 100%
Council Member Administration Elected Monthly 40.00$              $480.00 100% 100%
Council Member Administration Elected Monthly 40.00$              $480.00 100% 100%
Council Member Administration Elected Monthly 40.00$              $480.00 100% 100%
Council Member Administration Elected Monthly 40.00$              $480.00 100% 100%
Code Enforcement Director Administration Contract Monthly 195.00$            $2,340.00 100% 100%
City Attorney Administration Contract Monthly 1,000.00$         $12,000.00 100% 100%
Judge Court Contract Monthly 360.00$            $4,320.00 100% 100%
City Prosecutor Court Contract Monthly 500.00$            $6,000.00 100% 100%

$421,405.76

3,270,319.19$          
3,691,724.95$          

Wages

Wages
11%

Operating Expenses
89%



Year Make/ Model VIN Department
Replacement 

Value
Replacement

 Year
Purchase 

Type 
2005 International Dump Truck (Lease) 1HTWHAZR86J303222 Public Works 70,000.00$                                       2024 Lease

1.5 - 2 Ton Flat Bed Truck Public Works 15,000.00$                                       2024 Used
2019 Mower County Clipper Boss XL 19044009 Public Works 15,000.00$                                       2024 New

International Dump Truck (Lease) Public Works 70,000.00$                                       2025 Lease
2010 Chevy 3500 HD 1GC3K0BG6AF12188 Public Works 65,000.00$                                       2025 New

International Dump Truck (Lease) Public Works 70,000.00$                                       2026 Lease
2014 Dodge Charger 2C3CDXAT5EH246004 Police 65,000.00$                                       2026 New
2016 Mower Ferris IS 3200Z 2017412926 Public Works 15,000.00$                                       2026 New

International Dump Truck (Lease) Public Works 70,000.00$                                       2027 Lease
2018 Ford Explorer 1FM5K8AR9JGA84688 Police 65,000.00$                                       2027 New

International Dump Truck (Lease) Public Works 70,000.00$                                       2028 Lease
2015 Ford Expedition 1FMJU1GT8FEF34174 Police 65,000.00$                                       2028 New
2003 Cat Backhoe 420D CAT842BDCFDP1B118  /  7BJ76472 Public Works 150,000.00$                                     2029 Lease
1994 Model 747 Trailer Jet 747F Public Works 60,000.00$                                       2033 New
2020 Bobcat 5650 ALJ828577 Public Works 45,000.00$                                       2035 New

$910,000.00

Equipment Replacement Plan



2024 Budget
100 General 100 Revenue 4000 Ad Valorem Property Tax $255,324
100 General 100 Revenue 4010 Motor Vehicle Tax $22,396
100 General 100 Revenue 4020 Recreation Tax $340
100 General 100 Revenue 4030 16/20 Trucks $76
100 General 100 Revenue 4040 Delinquent Personal Tax $5,106
100 General 100 Revenue 4050 Sales Tax $300,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4060 Liquor Tax $3,622
100 General 100 Revenue 4068 In Lieu of Taxes $6,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4070 City/ County Revenue Sharing $0
100 General 100 Revenue 4080 LAVTR $0
100 General 100 Revenue 4090 Special Assessments $0
100 General 100 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0
100 General 100 Revenue 4110 Service Fees $2,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4120 Permits/ Licenses $2,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4130 Franchise Fees $70,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4370 Restitution $0
100 General 100 Revenue 4380 Court Fines and Fees $40,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4390 RV Park Rent $4,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4400 Swimming Pool Receipts $15,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4410 Swim Pool - Snack Concession $11,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4420 Swimming Pool- Pool Parties $5,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4430 Swimming Pool Lessons $8,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4440 Lifeguard/ CPR/ First Aid $0
100 General 100 Revenue 4450 Season Tickets $9,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4460 Landbank/ Planning Commission $100
100 General 100 Revenue 4910 Transfers $0
100 General 100 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $6,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $4,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $4,000
100 General 100 Revenue 4950 Carryover $150,000

$922,964

Fund 100 - GENERAL
Fund Dept Line

Total Revenue



2024 Budget
Fund 100 - GENERAL

Fund Dept Line
100 General 110 Administration 5010 Full-time Wages $44,317
100 General 110 Administration 5020 Part-time Wages/ Elected Officials $2,880
100 General 110 Administration 5030 Contract Labor $14,340
100 General 110 Administration 5040 Overtime $500
100 General 110 Administration 5050 Benefits $33,000
100 General 110 Administration 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $3,500
100 General 110 Administration 5110 Training/ Conferences $4,000
100 General 110 Administration 5120 Dues/ Memberships $3,000
100 General 110 Administration 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $0
100 General 110 Administration 5140 Utilities and Phone $3,500
100 General 110 Administration 5150 Facilities Maintenance $5,000
100 General 110 Administration 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $500
100 General 110 Administration 5170 Postage/ Stationary $1,500
100 General 110 Administration 5180 Commodities $8,000
100 General 110 Administration 5190 Contractual $23,000
100 General 110 Administration 5200 Grants $400
100 General 110 Administration 5360 Landbank/ Planning Commission $500
100 General 110 Administration 5911 Transfer to Equip. Reserve $30,000
100 General 110 Administration 5912 Transfer to Capital Improvement $25,000
100 General 110 Administration 5930 In Lieu of Taxes - County $0
100 General 110 Administration 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $100
100 General 110 Administration 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $274,956

$477,993

100 General 120 Police Department 5010 Full-time Wages $137,708
100 General 120 Police Department 5020 Part-time Wages $10,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5030 Contract Labor $0
100 General 120 Police Department 5040 Overtime $1,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5050 Benefits $42,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $12,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5110 Training/ Conferences $5,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5120 Dues/ Memberships $500
100 General 120 Police Department 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $4,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5140 Utilities and Phone $5,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5150 Facilities Maintenance $0
100 General 120 Police Department 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $21,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5170 Postage/ Stationary $300
100 General 120 Police Department 5180 Commodities $6,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5190 Contractual $8,000
100 General 120 Police Department 5200 Grants $0
100 General 120 Police Department 5340 Animal Control $500
100 General 120 Police Department 5350 Jail Fees $0
100 General 120 Police Department 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $300
100 General 120 Police Department 5950 Capital Outlay $0

$253,308

100 General 130 Municipal Court 5010 Full-time Wages $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5020 Part-time Wages $4,320
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5030 Contract Labor $6,000
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5040 Overtime $100
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5050 Benefits $200
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5110 Training/ Conferences $500
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5120 Dues/ Memberships $100
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5140 Utilities and Phone $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5150 Facilities Maintenance $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5170 Postage/ Stationary $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5180 Commodities $100
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5190 Contractual $1,200
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5200 Grants $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0
100 General 130 Municipal Court 5950 Capital Outlay $0

$12,520Municipal Court Sub-total

General Administration Sub-total

Police Department Sub-total



2024 Budget
Fund 100 - GENERAL

Fund Dept Line
100 General 140 Streets Department 5010 Full-time Wages $30,144
100 General 140 Streets Department 5020 Part-time Wages $4,000
100 General 140 Streets Department 5030 Contract Labor $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5040 Overtime $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5050 Benefits $11,000
100 General 140 Streets Department 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $3,500
100 General 140 Streets Department 5110 Training/ Conferences $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5120 Dues/ Memberships $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5140 Utilities and Phone $25,500
100 General 140 Streets Department 5150 Facilities Maintenance $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $10,000
100 General 140 Streets Department 5170 Postage/ Stationary $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5180 Commodities $2,500
100 General 140 Streets Department 5190 Contractual $2,000
100 General 140 Streets Department 5200 Grants $0
100 General 140 Streets Department 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $100
100 General 140 Streets Department 5950 Capital Outlay $1,000

$89,744

100 General 150 Parks Department 5010 Full-time Wages $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5020 Part-time Wages $8,600
100 General 150 Parks Department 5030 Contract Labor $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5040 Overtime $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5050 Benefits $1,500
100 General 150 Parks Department 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $5,500
100 General 150 Parks Department 5110 Training/ Conferences $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5120 Dues/ Memberships $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5140 Utilities and Phone $4,500
100 General 150 Parks Department 5150 Facilities Maintenance $500
100 General 150 Parks Department 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $500
100 General 150 Parks Department 5170 Postage/ Stationary $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5180 Commodities $1,000
100 General 150 Parks Department 5190 Contractual $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5200 Grants $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5320 RV Park Rental Reimbursement $0
100 General 150 Parks Department 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $100
100 General 150 Parks Department 5950 Capital Outlay $0

$22,200

100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5010 Full-time Wages $0
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5020 Part-time Wages $35,000
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5030 Contract Labor $0
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5040 Overtime $0
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5050 Benefits $2,800
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $8,900
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5110 Training/ Conferences $1,100
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5120 Dues/ Memberships $0
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $700
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5140 Utilities and Phone $5,000
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5150 Facilities Maintenance $0
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $1,000
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5170 Postage/ Stationary $0
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5180 Commodities $5,000
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5190 Contractual $1,300
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5200 Grants $0
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5330 Concessions $5,900
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $500
100 General 160 Municipal Pool 5950 Capital Outlay $0

$67,200
$922,965

Streets Department Sub-total

Parks Department Sub-total

Municipal Pool Sub-total
Total Expense



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Revenue 4050 Sales Tax $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Revenue 4910 Transfers $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $500 $500
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Revenue 4950 Carryover $5,000 $6,000

$5,500 $6,500

160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Expense 5180 Commodities $500 $500
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Expense 5190 Contractual $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
160 Swimming Pool Reserve 160 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $5,000 $6,000

$5,500 $6,500

$0 $0

Dept Item Amount Dept Item Amount Amount

TOTAL $0

TOTAL $0 $0

Budgeted UNFUNDED DEFICIENCIES

Fund 160 - SWIMMING POOL RESERVE
Fund Dept Line

Swimming Pool Reserve Total Revenue

Swimming Pool Reserve Total Expense



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
200 Capital Improvement 200 Revenue 4050 Sales Tax $0 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Revenue 4910 Transfers $25,000 $25,000
200 Capital Improvement 200 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Revenue 4950 Carryover $168,000 $25,000

$193,000 $50,000

200 Capital Improvement 200 Expense 5180 Commodities $18,000 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Expense 5190 Contractual $0 $25,000
200 Capital Improvement 200 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Expense 5912 Transfer to Fund Reserve $152,107 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
200 Capital Improvement 200 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $22,893 $25,000

$193,000 $50,000

$0

Dept Item Amount Dept Item Amount
Pool Diving Board $12,000 Admin Planning & Zoning Update $35,000

Pool Shade Structure $6,000 Police Police Dept Building $80,000

TOTAL $18,000 Admin CDBG/ MIH Grant Admin $15,000

TOTAL $130,000

Fund 200 - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT

Budgeted UNFUNDED DEFICIENCIES

Capital Improvement Total Revenue

Capital Improvement Total Expense

Fund Dept Line



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4062 Fuel Tax $31,200 $32,060
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4064 Connecting Links $65,000 $60,350
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4910 Transfers $152,107 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Revenue 4950 Carryover $81,000 $80,431

$329,307 $172,841

300 Special Highway 140 Expense 5180 Commodities $0 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Expense 5190 Contractual $0 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Expense 5200 Grants $322,107 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
300 Special Highway 140 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $7,200 $172,841

$329,307 $172,841

$0

Dept Item Amount Dept Item Amount
Crack Seal $15,000 Streets Street CIP

Streets Storm Drainage Improvement

Streets Remove &  Replace Approaches $1000/ Approach

Streets Mill & Overlay Linn (9th - 4th)

Streets Mill & Overlay Oak (9th - K4)

$15,000TOTAL

Special Highway Total Expense

Fund 300 - SPECIAL HIGHWAY
Fund Dept Line

Special Highway Total Revenue

Budgeted UNFUNDED DEFICIENCIES



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Revenue 4050 Sales Tax $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Revenue 4910 Transfers $140,000 $60,000
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Revenue 4950 Carryover $2,000 $3,000

$142,000 $63,000

400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Expense 5180 Commodities $100,000 $42,500
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Expense 5190 Contractual $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
400 Municipal Equipment Reserve 400 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $42,000 $20,500

$142,000 $63,000

$0

Dept Item Amount Dept Item Amount
PW Dump Truck (Lease) $70,000 See Equipment Replacement Plan
PW Mower $15,000
PW Flat Bed $15,000

$100,000 $810,000TOTAL

Total Municipal Equipment Reserve Fund Expense

Fund 400 - MUNICIPAL EQUIPMENT RESERVE

TOTAL

Fund Dept Line

Total Municipal Equipment Reserve Fund Revenue

Budgeted UNFUNDED DEFICIENCIES



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
500 Bond & Interest 500 Revenue 4050 Sales Tax $170,000 $108,000
500 Bond & Interest 500 Revenue 4910 Transfers $75,000 $30,000
500 Bond & Interest 500 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
500 Bond & Interest 500 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
500 Bond & Interest 500 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
500 Bond & Interest 500 Revenue 4950 Carryover $100,000 $44,393

$345,000 $182,393

500 Bond & Interest 500 Expense 5400 Principal Payment $128,738 $65,000
500 Bond & Interest 500 Expense 5410 Interest Payment $49,431 $39,000
500 Bond & Interest 500 Expense Service Fee $4,603 $0
500 Bond & Interest 500 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
500 Bond & Interest 500 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $162,228 $78,865

$345,000 $182,393Bond & Interest Total Expense

Fund 500 - BOND & INTEREST
Fund Dept Line

Bond & Interest Total Revenue



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
600 RHID 600 Revenue 4090 Special Assessment/ RHID $50,000 $30,000
600 RHID 600 Revenue 4910 Transfers $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Revenue 4950 Carryover $78,000 $30,000

$128,000 $60,000

600 RHID 600 Expense 5180 Commodities $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Expense 5190 Contractual $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
600 RHID 600 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $128,000 $60,000

$128,000 $60,000

$0 $0

Total Public Safety Equipment Fund Expense

Fund 600- RHID (Rural Housing Incentive District)
Fund Dept Line

Total Public Safety Equipment Fund Revenue



2024 Budget
720 Water 720 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0
720 Water 720 Revenue 4110 Service Fees $500
720 Water 720 Revenue 4310 Meter Setting $500
720 Water 720 Revenue 4320 Meter Connection $2,000
720 Water 720 Revenue 4330 Utility Reciepts $418,975
720 Water 720 Revenue 4340 High Volume Sales $50,000
720 Water 720 Revenue 4350 Utility Penalties $5,000
720 Water 720 Revenue 4360 Utility Sales Tax $3,200
720 Water 720 Revenue 4900 Payment Plans $0
720 Water 720 Revenue 4910 Transfers $0
720 Water 720 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0
720 Water 720 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $500
720 Water 720 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $500
720 Water 720 Revenue 4950 Carryover $100,000

$581,175

720 Water 720 Expense 5010 Full-time Wages $57,969
720 Water 720 Expense 5020 Part-time Wages $4,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5030 Contract Labor $0
720 Water 720 Expense 5040 Overtime $5,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5050 Benefits $21,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $21,500
720 Water 720 Expense 5110 Training/ Conferences $1,500
720 Water 720 Expense 5120 Dues/ Memberships $700
720 Water 720 Expense 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $2,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5140 Utilities and Phone $32,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5150 Facilities Maintenance $18,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $6,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5170 Postage/ Stationary $4,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5180 Commodities $41,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5190 Contractual $11,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5200 Grants $750
720 Water 720 Expense 5310 High Volume Sales $50,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5360 Utility Sales Tax $3,200
720 Water 720 Expense 5900 Payment Plans $0
720 Water 720 Expense 5910 Transfer to General $0
720 Water 720 Expense 5911 Transfer to Equip. Reserve $55,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5912 Transfer to Fund Reserve $50,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $1,000
720 Water 720 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $195,556

$581,175Water Fund Total Expense

Fund 720 - WATER
Fund

Water Fund Total Revenue

Dept Line



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
721 Water Reserve 720 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
721 Water Reserve 720 Revenue 4910 Transfers $50,000 $50,000
721 Water Reserve 720 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
721 Water Reserve 720 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
721 Water Reserve 720 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
721 Water Reserve 720 Revenue 4950 Carryover $40,000 $0

$90,000 $50,000

721 Water Reserve 720 Expense 5180 Commodities $0 $0
721 Water Reserve 720 Expense 5190 Contractual $31,000 $28,100
721 Water Reserve 720 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
721 Water Reserve 720 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
721 Water Reserve 720 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $59,000 $21,900

$90,000 $50,000

$0

Dept Item Amount Dept Item Amount
Water Water Master Plan Update $15,000 Water Water Source Engineering (2025) $15,000
Water Paint Water Plant (Exterior) $1,000 Water Paint Water Plant (Interior) $45,000
Water Turbidity Meter $8,000 Water Waterline Replacement Project $1,200,000
Water UPS Battery Backup $2,000 Water Spring Line from lake repair $10,000 1/ year. Approx 10

Water Generator Mount at Water Plant $5,000 Water Valves Additions - hydrants/ system $80,000 1/ year. Approx 15

TOTAL $31,000 Water Valves Replacement/ Exercise Program $120,000
Water Retaining wall at water plant $10,000
TOTAL $1,480,000

UNFUNDED DEFICIENCIESBudgeted

Water Reserve Total Expense

Fund 721 - WATER RESERVE
Fund Dept Line

Water Reserve Total Revenue



2024 Budget
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4110 Service Fees $0
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4310 Meter Setting $0
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4320 Meter Connection $2,000
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4330 Utility Reciepts $358,278
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4340 High Volume Sales $50,000
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4350 Utility Penalties $3,500
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4360 Utility Sales Tax $0
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4900 Payment Plans $0
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4910 Transfers $0
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $500
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $500
730 Sewer 730 Revenue 4950 Carryover $150,000

$564,778

730 Sewer 730 Expense 5010 Full-time Wages $57,969
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5020 Part-time Wages $4,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5030 Contract Labor $0
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5040 Overtime $5,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5050 Benefits $21,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $6,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5110 Training/ Conferences $1,500
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5120 Dues/ Memberships $700
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $2,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5140 Utilities and Phone $6,500
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5150 Facilities Maintenance $1,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $6,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5170 Postage/ Stationary $4,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5180 Commodities $8,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5190 Contractual $8,500
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5200 Grants $750
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5310 High Volume Sales $50,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5360 Utility Sales Tax $0
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5900 Payment Plans $0
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5910 Transfer to General $0
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5911 Transfer to Equip. Reserve $55,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5912 Transfer to Fund Reserve $50,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5913 Transfer to Bond & Int $75,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $1,000
730 Sewer 730 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $200,859

$564,778Sewer Fund Total Expense

Fund 13 - SEWER
Fund Dept Line

Sewer Fund Total Revenue



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Revenue 4910 Transfers $50,000 $50,000
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Revenue 4950 Carryover $45,000 $0

$95,000 $50,000

731 Sewer Reserve 730 Expense 5180 Commodities $0 $0
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Expense 5190 Contractual $40,000 $10,000
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
731 Sewer Reserve 730 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $55,000 $40,000

$95,000 $50,000

$0

Dept Item Amount Dept Item Amount
Sewer Fence at Lagoon $40,000 Sewer Pump Shed at Lagoon $2,000

Sewer PLC Install - Linn & Sewer Ponds $10,000
Sewer Add Shutoff at Sewer Ponds $8,000

TOTAL $40,000 Sewer Dirt Work at Lagoon $250,000
Sewer Phase 2 Sewer Rehab $1,600,000
Sewer Lift Station Upgrade on Linn $50,000
Sewer Fix/ Replace Valves at Sewer Ponds $3,000
Sewer Sewer Pond Fence/ Grading $150,000
TOTAL $2,073,000

Budgeted UNFUNDED DEFICIENCIES

Fund 731 -SEWER RESERVE
Fund Dept Line

Sewer Reserve Total Revenue

Sewer Reserve Total Expense



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4110 Service Fees $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4310 Meter Setting $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4320 Meter Connection $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4330 Utility Reciepts $175,000 $145,000
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4340 High Volume Sales $50,000 $50,000
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4350 Utility Penalties $2,000 $2,000
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4360 Utility Sales Tax $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4900 Payment Plans $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4910 Transfers $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $500 $500
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $500 $500
740 Solid Waste 740 Revenue 4950 Carryover $67,000 $60,000

$295,000 $258,000

740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5010 Full-time Wages $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5020 Part-time Wages $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5030 Contract Labor $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5040 Overtime $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5050 Benefits $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5100 Insurance - GL, WC, and Property $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5110 Training/ Conferences $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5120 Dues/ Memberships $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5130 Equipment/ Uniforms $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5140 Utilities and Phone $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5150 Facilities Maintenance $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5160 Vehicle Maintenance/ Fuel $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5170 Postage/ Stationary $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5180 Commodities $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5190 Contractual $170,000 $130,000
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5300 Utility Costs $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5310 High Volume Sales $50,000 $50,000
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5360 Utility Sales Tax $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5900 Payment Plans $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5910 Transfer to General $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5911 Transfer to Equip. Reserve $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5912 Transfer to Fund Reserve $0 $0
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $500 $500
740 Solid Waste 740 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $74,500 $77,500

$295,000 $258,000Sanitation Fund Total Expense

Fund 740 - SOLID WASTE
Fund Dept Line

Sanitation Fund Total Revenue



2024 Budget 2023 Budget
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Revenue 4100 Grants & Donations $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Revenue 4910 Transfers $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Revenue 4920 Interest Income $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Revenue 4930 AR/ Reimbursed Income $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Revenue 4940 Micellaneous Income $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Revenue 4950 Carryover $0 $0

$0 $0

790 Insurance Reserve 790 Expense 5180 Commodities $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Expense 5190 Contractual $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Expense 5200 Grants $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Expense 5940 Reimbursement / Miscellaneous $0 $0
790 Insurance Reserve 790 Expense 5950 Capital Outlay/ Carryover $0 $0

$0 $0

$0 $0

Insurance Reserve Total Expense

Fund 790 -INSURANCE RESERVE
Fund Dept Line

Insurance Reserve Total Revenue



This page intentionally left blank.



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 
 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  July 19, 2023 
 
 
INVOICES IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF:  $68,801.08 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF KANSAS 
 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
I hereby certify that the attached bills are just, correct, and remain unpaid, and that the amount therein is 
actually due and owing according to law.  
 

Approved by: 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Administrator 

 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of July, 2023 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

   
  



Mon Jul 17, 2023  4:24 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     1
                                              Check Range:    7/06/2023- 7/19/2023                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Valley Falls                                                 OPER: AA 



Mon Jul 17, 2023  4:24 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     2
                                              CLAIMS FUND SUMMARY                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Valley Falls                                                 OPER: AA 



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 
 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  August 2, 2023 
 
 
INVOICES IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF:  $371,883.72 
 
APPROVED: 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
______________________________ ______________________________ 
 
 
STATE OF KANSAS 
 
COUNTY OF JEFFERSON 
 
I hereby certify that the attached bills are just, correct, and remain unpaid, and that the amount therein is 
actually due and owing according to law.  
 

Approved by: 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Administrator 

 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me this _______ day of August, 2023 
 
 

______________________________ 
City Clerk 

   
  



Mon Jul 31, 2023  2:20 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     1
                                              Check Range:    7/20/2023- 8/02/2023                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Valley Falls                                                 OPER: AA 



Mon Jul 31, 2023  2:20 PM CLAIMS REPORT Page     2
                                              CLAIMS FUND SUMMARY                                               
                                                                                                                                                        

APCLAIRP 04.22.22  City of Valley Falls                                                 OPER: AA 



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1854 
City Administrator Report 

City Council August 2, 2023 
 
Daily Operations 
1. ICMA Finished credentialling process to become a Certified City Manager with the International City Manager 

Association.  
2. Welcome Sign Put together some design options for Chamber to update the Welcome Sign on the hill.  
3. Codification First draft of update code is anticipated by mid-July.  
4. Budget Completed budget presentation and entry into state budget form.  
5. Storm Siren Storm siren has been installed at the park. Will work with Evergy to get connected to power. Once 

power is connected then BVPS will return to program the siren. Talked with Jepson’s to remove old noon whistle. It 
is his understanding it belongs to the city. He is in agreement to remove the siren at city’s cost. 

6. Website Updated and organized the website.  
7. City BBQ Organized the Party in the Park (City BBQ) Event.  
8. Ford Truck The new truck for the public works department is anticipated to be here by the end of this week. 
9. Barnes Addition Plot PEC has completed the draft. County appraiser not responding to PEC. The plot will be 

recorded this month.  
10. Utility Mapping PEC has starting adding the new maps on the GIS system. Maps should be ready by end of July. 
11. 207 Sycamore St Condemnation Waiting to put on tax sale.   
12. 204 Walnut St Condemnation Next update August 23rd.   
13. 419 Broadway St Condemnation Next update August 23rd.  
14. Community Development Board – Collaborative meeting over by-laws on June 28th. Sent letters out for membership 

to past EDC members and posted on Facebook page.  
15. Planning Commission – Met on July 6th variance was approved for 920 Walnut St. In addition a ordinance is being 

drafted to change setback regulations on double frontage lots. Next meeting is August 10, 2023 at 6:30 PM. 
 
Grants & Projects 
1. CDBG Sewer Project Phase 1- Construction began May 1st. Anticipated completion by October 2023.  
2. KDHE Waste Tire Grant – Awarded grant of $2,600 for benches and tables. Received first half of payment. Benches 

and tables have being assembled.  
3. SS4A Grant – Awarded grant of $40,000 Federal Funding and $5,000 KDOT. Working on completing RFQ with PEC for 

consultant. Final grant agreements received from KDOT and USDOT.  
4. LSSE Grant Application submitted. To be used for radios and Enterpol RMS. Anticipated award notice in September. 
5. T-Mobile Grant Application submitted on behalf of Valley Falls Historical Society. Anticipated award notice in 

September.  
6. K-4 / K-16 Street Lights –Met with KDOT on July 18th to review recommendations. A speed study and safety study 

(lighting) were conducted for K-16 and K-4 Highways. The recommendations from the speed study are: installation 
of a speed radar sign on K-4 south of the Oak St intersection, increased enforcement from KHP and Jefferson County 
Sheriff, and reduce the speed on west K-16 from 45 to 35. The recommendations from the safety study are: Install 
reflective decals on the post of the stop signs, paint stop lines on K-16, mark the island with reflective paint at K-
4/K-16 junction, possible route pavement markings on K-4 to mark K-16 turnoff, move the entrance to Sewer 
Lagoons further South on K-4 and install end of roadway sign at K-16/ K-4 intersection (dependent on lagoon 
entrance being moved). All recommendations will be completed by KDOT by the end of the year with the exception 
of the driveway. The KDOT maintenance crew will evaluate whether they can move the entrance to the lagoons. No 
lighting was warranted at the K-16/ K-4 intersection due to low traffic counts and crash logs. KDOT did say they 
would allow for lighting to be installed at the City’s cost. Final reports for the speed study and safety study will be 
sent once the lagoon entrance has been evaluated. 

7. Opioid Settlement –Total received to date is $2,952.96. $0.00 expended. Working with PD on possible uses of 
funds.   

   
  



CITY OFFICE 
417 Broadway • Valley Falls, Kansas 66088-1200 

Phone 785-945-6612  •  Fax 785-945-3341 

 

8. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) – Projects completed to date include: gWorks Software, RV Park Electrical 
Upgrade. Funds used to date: $23,851.40. Projects pending to date include: KDOT TA Downtown Streetscape 
Project. Remaining Funds: $152,106.96.  

9. Automatic Water Meters – 16 meters left to install. Waiting on more meters. Anticipated delivery is September. 
10. KDHE Lead & Copper Lead & Copper Inventory due to KDHE by October 16, 2024. Submitted grant application to 

KDHE for technical assistance.  

 
 
 





417 Broadway St. • Valley Falls, KS 66088 
Phone (785) 945-6612 • Fax (785) 945-3341 • www.valleyfalls.org 

 

Incorporated May 17, 1869 

 

   
  

 

Public Works Report 
August 2, 2023 

 
Water: 
Got the generator partially installed at Hurst tower they still need to connect it to the gas service. Once completed we will 
test run the unit to ensure that everything is in proper working order 
  
Spent 2 days chasing the Spring line that comes from the city lake and have it temporarily capped we will evaluate the 
viability of repairing the line once the power crews are finished working in the area 
  
Did the sampling for the lead and copper testing of our water distribution system 
Took samples for nitrate levels in the water system 
  
Streets: 
The brick repair in front of the methodist church and clothes closet has been completed 
  
Regraded the alley behind the post office and a couple other alleys 
  
Replace 2 stop signs one at 7th and elm the other at 8th and elm 
  
Repaired and regraded a couple more alley ways to remove  pot holes and ruts 
  
Replaced the 36 inch water meter cover at 7th and elm for the school and prepped it for concrete 
  
Cleared brush and limbs away from signage north of 9th Street 
  
Sewers: 
Continuing to assist the sewer crews and doing locates as needed 
  
General: 
Added 15 more grass carp to the pond on oak St  and sprayed the duck weed on the pond we will be spraying again in 14 
days providing  we have a 4 day window with no rain to allow the chemicals to work effectively 
  
Mowed the lot at 207 Sycamore 
  
Mowed the lot west of the drive down by the river 
  
Picked up brush blown down by storms 

 



Incorporated May 17,
1854

Swimming Pool Report August 2, 2023

● No additional pool passes have been sold. #75 is the next number for a pass. Same as reported

July 19th.

● Community Pool Party - Christmas in July - July 25th, $2.00 admission. Was a success! 102

people attended.

● Pool parties reserved for August on the 2nd, 8th, 10th, 11th and 12th. The staff have not

determined when and if they will have an end of season party.

● Closing Saturday, August 12th at 7:00 pm. If there is bleach available may continue with water

aerobics.

● The new cooler works very well this summer to keep all the beverages, candy and chocolate in

one place and visible by customers.

● The new freezer works very well to hold extra stock. Wonderful alarm feature when the door is

left open. Gets the kids attention!

● Sending staff home early when there are not many swimmers in the evening or no pool parties.

● Continuing to update the list of items for repair or consideration for purchase for next season.

Items to Consider Replacing or Repairing to prepare for Season 2024

❖ Awning over concession stand

❖ Diving board and base need to be sanded and repainted to remove rust.

❖ Replace basketball goal or look to get new feature to attach to the pool bottom

➢ The pool bottom has the areas to connect features. Would need to check that the

recent painting of the pool bottom still allows these areas to be used.

❖ Paint line on the pool bottom to separate 5ft from the deep end.

❖ After draining the pool, tighten the drain cover.

❖ Attach the new ball floats in the pit area. What other changes need to be done in the pit area?

❖ Order at least 2 new umbrellas to have on hand for the guard stands.

❖ Remove and replace the wood benches. Not all benches need to be replaced. Benches could be

refinished.



❖ More rock may be needed for the parking lot.

❖ Spray the parking lot and around the pool prior to season several times to kill weeds and grass

that is growing in the areas around the pool. Start this process several weeks before the pool

opens.

❖ Find a place for the large piece of tin that is for the carport/pit cover to be moved to or used.

This will allow the bike rack to be used.

❖ Could use some plastic plugs for the pool wall holes. Several are missing.

❖ What maintenance, if any, needs to be done to the backwash filter container?

❖ What maintenance needs to be done for both bathrooms?

➢ stool/urinal replacements?

➢ exhaust fans

❖ Have the water slide inspected. There are slow drips under the slide and some large concrete

chips around the pillars.

❖ The yellow umbrella and mushroom need to be repainted. There are parts that are rusted.

❖ The Delaware Point Sign on the east side of the building needs to be repaired, touched up and

made to look better.

❖ Is it possible to add an electrical outlet around the counter and sink area?

➢ 1 Outlet in this area and unable to use two microwaves.

❖ Purchase a battery operated polisher/buffer to use on the large slide. Slide is waxed once a

week.

❖ Need to purchase a broom to sweep the pool bottom. The broom that is used was brought from

the old pool and recently Bill repaired it by adding a screw. The brush head is worn.

❖ Consider using the lap lane ropes that are in the shed and never used, to make new ropes for

the pool. This would be for the following areas.

➢ deep end

➢ shallow end

➢ to mark off the slide (two ropes are needed)

Page 2



EXECUTIVE SESSION MOTIONS  
There is no standard format for the motion to recess into executive session which will apply to all 
situations.  Because the statutory language requires the motion contain both the “justification” and 
the “subjects” to be discussed, the motion should include the statutory reason for recessing into 
executive session and a more specific description of the topic for discussion. 
 

1. Statutory reason for non –elected personnel needs a more specific reason which could be 
Individual employee’s performance 

I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss an individual employee’s performance 
pursuant to the non-elected personnel matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319 (b) (1) to include: (people to 
participate besides governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at 
____PM.  
 

2. Statutory reason for Attorney – Client privilege needs a more specific reason which could be 
discuss contract, Litigation, Claim, or other such more specific item. 

I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss a claim pursuant to Attorney – Client 
privilege matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(2) to include: the City Attorney and (people to 
participate besides governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at 
_____PM.  
 

3. For employer-employee negations a more specific description could be salary. 
I move the city council recess into executive session to discuss salary pursuant to employer-employee 
negotiations matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b) (3) to include: (people to participate besides 
governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM.  
 

4. For property acquisition matters a more specific description could be purchase cost. 
I move the city council recess into executive session to preliminary discuss purchase cost pursuant to  
property acquisition matter exception, K.S.A. 75-4319(b)(6) to include: (people to participate besides 
governing body.) The open meeting will resume in the city council room at _____PM.  
 
 
K.S.A. 75-4319. Closed or executive meetings; conditions; authorized subjects for discussion; binding 
action prohibited; certain documents identified in meetings not subject to disclosure. (a) Upon formal 
motion made, seconded and carried, all bodies and agencies subject to the open meetings act 
may recess, but not adjourn, open meetings for closed or executive meetings. Any motion to recess 
for a closed or executive meeting shall include a statement of (1) the justification for closing the 
meeting, (2) the subjects to be discussed during the closed or executive meeting and (3) the time 
and place at which the open meeting shall resume. Such motion, including the required statement, 
shall be recorded in the minutes of the meeting and shall be maintained as a part of the permanent 
records of the body or agency. Discussion during the closed or executive meeting shall be limited to 
those subjects stated in the motion. (b) No subjects shall be discussed at any closed or executive 
meeting, except the following: 
(1) Personnel matters of nonelected personnel;  
(2) consultation with an attorney for the body or agency which would be deemed privileged in the 
attorney-client relationship;  
(3) matters relating to employer-employee negotiations whether or not in consultation with the 
representative or representatives of the body or agency;  
(4) confidential data relating to financial affairs or trade secrets of corporations, partnerships, trusts, 
and individual proprietorships;  
(5) matters relating to actions adversely or favorably affecting a person as a student, patient or 
resident of a public institution, except that any such person shall have the right to a public hearing if 
requested by the person;  
(6) preliminary discussions relating to the acquisition of real property; 


	Agenda Packet 08.02.2023
	Agenda 08.02.2023
	Council Minutes 07.05.2023
	Public Comment Policy
	Grasshopper Falls Day Request
	Grasshopper Falls Day Alcohol Resolution
	Octoberfest Request
	Octoberfest Alcohol Resolution
	City BBQ Alcohol Resolution
	STO 14-119
	UPOC 11-117

	BCBS Cost Analysis
	Agenda Packet 08.02.2023
	Auditor Proposal Vonfeldt
	Auditor Proposal Adams

	Agenda Packet 08.02.2023
	Pay Request #1
	Pay Request #2
	City Inspector Cert of Insurance
	Businessowners Policy 9346544
	BP-F-115 Additional Insured by Contract Endorsement


	2024 VF Working Budget

	Agenda Packet 08.02.2023
	AP 07.19.2023
	Vouchers facesheet
	AP

	AP 08.02.2023
	Vouchers facesheet.pdf
	AP Report.pdf

	City Admin Report
	City Admin Report.pdf
	Fund Balance.pdf

	Public Works Report
	Pool Report
	Executive Session Motion


